
 
 

 

 
Meeting of:   

 
Communities, Regeneration and Environment 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date: Thursday, 24th September, 2020 
Time: 6.00 pm. 
Venue: Zoom 

 
This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by 
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. 

Item 
No. 

AGENDA Page No 

1   Apologies   

 To receive any apologies for absence.  

2   Declarations of Interest   

 Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 

or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 

those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 

of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

 

3   Urgent Items of Business   

 To determine whether there are any additional items of business 

which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 

be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

 

4   Minutes  3 - 7 

 To consider the Minutes of the meeting of the Communities, 

Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 

held 20th February 2020 

 

5   RBH - Fire Concerns   

 Director of Neighbourhoods to report 

 

 

Public Document Pack



6   Wardle and Smallbridge Football Club  8 - 12 

7   Inclusive Skills, Work and Health Plan 2021-2023  13 - 34 

 To scrutinise economic growth opportunities identified in the recently 

adopted Borough Growth Plan 

 

8   Work Programme 2020/2021  35 - 36 

 To consider a Work Programme for the Committee – 2020/2021  

 

Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Members 
Councillor Tom Besford Councillor Jacqui Beswick 
Councillor Susan Emmott Councillor Andy Kelly 
Councillor Daniel Meredith Councillor Angela Smith 
Councillor June West Councillor Peter Williams 
Councillor Peter Winkler Councillor Sameena Zaheer 
 

For more information about this meeting, please contact  
Peter Thompson 
Committees and Constitutional Services 
 
Telephone - 01706 924715 
E-mail peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk  

mailto:peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk


COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
MINUTES OF MEETING 

Thursday, 20th February 2020 
 

PRESENT: Councillors Meredith (in the Chair); Councillors Besford, Beswick, 
Susan Emmott, Kelly, Angela Smith, West, Winkler and Zaheer. 
 
OFFICERS: M. Widdup (Director of Neighbourhoods), M. Robinson (Assistant 
Director – Economy), P. Maynard, M. Roberts (Neighbourhoods Directorate) 
and P. Thompson (Resources Directorate). 
 
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: D. Cook (Operations Director – Rochdale 
Development Agency), E. Cheshire (FutureGov) and one member of the 
public. 
 

31 APOLOGIES 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Peter Williams. 
 

32 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
There were no declarations of interests. 
 

33 MINUTES 
Resolved: 
That the Minutes of the meeting of Communities, Regeneration and 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee, held 28th November 2019, be 
approved and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 
 

34 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
The Chair advised that he was minded to permit two additional items for 
consideration, as follows: 

a. Feel Good Festival (minute 35) 
b. Flooding (minute 36) 

 
35 FEEL GOOD FESTIVAL 

The Director of Neighbourhoods gave a presentation regarding the 
background to the Rochdale ‘Feel Good’ Festival and preparations that were 
in place for the 2020 event. 
 
The Festival was established in 2007 and has been held annually, in 
Rochdale town centre in each subsequent year, usually on the last weekend 
of August. The Festival is managed by Rochdale Town Centre Management 
and supported by council staff and volunteers. 
 
The Festival’s events and activities were free of charge to all persons 
attending. Funding for the Festival came from the Council and sponsorship 
partnerships (both monetary and in kind agreements), usually from locally 
based sponsors. The Festival itself comprised of: live music stage, chef 
demonstrations, family entertainment, indoor venues, with objectives of 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



promoting health and wellbeing, feeling good, family fun, positive publicity for 
Rochdale and the wider Borough and attracting visitors to the town. In terms 
of this latter point just over 14,000 attended the 2018 Festival of whom, 4,308 
resided outside of the Rochdale Borough. A key feature of recent Festivals 
was the increasing multi-cultural nature of the events and that was reflected in 
the demographic profile of people attending the Festival.  
 
Resolved: 
That the presentation be noted and welcomed. 
 

36 FLOODING 
At the request of the Chair, the Director of Neighbourhoods updated the 
Committee on incidences of flooding that had occurred in the Borough in the 
aftermath of the recent weather events that had affected large parts of the 
United Kingdom, namely Storms Ciara and Dennis. Rochdale though escaped 
the worst effects of these storms. 
 
Insofar as the Rochdale Borough was concerned parts of Milnrow and 
Littleborough had been affected by flooding from the rivers Beal and Roch 
respectively. 
 
The Committee was advised on measures that the Council was taking to help 
to warn residents who live in ‘flood risk’ areas to best prepare for potential 
flooding events.  
 
The Director of Neighbourhoods also advised on measures that the Council 
could take to prepare for a flooding event in Rochdale town centre, including 
the erection of flood barriers around Number One Riverside. The director also 
informed Members that the Council regularly prepared a newsletter regarding 
areas, within the Borough, that were most prone to being flooded and he 
undertook to forward a copy of the latest edition of the newsletter to members 
of the Committee. 
 
Resolved: 

1. That the Director of Neighbourhoods’ update on flood risks within the 
Borough be noted. 

2. The Director of Neighbourhoods be requested to submit a report to a 
future meeting of the Committee regarding pro-active work that the 
Council, and partner agencies, are taking to combat the risk of flooding.  

 
37 HOMELESSNESS AND HOUSING ALLOCATIONS BUSINESS 

TRANSFORMATION PROJECT 
The Director of Neighbourhoods and Ms. E. Cheshire (FutureGov) gave a 
presentation regarding homelessness and the housing allocations business 
transformation project. Rochdale Council’s Strategic Housing team had asked 
FutureGov to support them in conducting a discovery around the 
Homelessness and Allocation services.  

Page 4



Phase 1 of the project aimed to uncover pain points for residents, services 
and partner organisations, to identify opportunities for change and to develop 
a vision for a future experience in a collaborative way.  
 
FutureGov worked with relevant council teams/services and providers, to 
better understand the challenges and the issues unique to Rochdale Borough 
and they used data to define the scale of the issues. Thy endeavored to listen 
and learn from residents to identify how services impact on their lives.  
 
Together with Rochdale Council and providers FutureGov built a shared 
understanding of the ways services have failed to meet people’s needs. They 
collaboratively explored ideas for how the services could be different for 
customers, staff and providers and they now need to be developed and 
tested. They also collectively crafted a new vision and mission for the future of 
Housing in the Rochdale Borough.  
 
Resolved: 
That the presentation be noted and welcomed. 
 

38 RESPONSE TO CLIMATE EMERGENCY MOTION 
The Director of Neighbourhoods presented a report which set out the scale of 
the challenge faced by the Council and other agencies to meet the Climate 
Emergency Motion declared by the Council (at its meeting on 17th July 2019: 
minute 15 refers). The report set out details of work that had been done prior 
to the Council Motion and subsequent action. The report also outlined what 
actions and leadership were needed to work towards the ambitions of the 
Council Motion.  
 
The Committee noted that this report had been previously presented to the 
Cabinet at its meeting on 28th January 2020 (minute 68 refers) and in doing so 
endorsed the report and the decisions that the Cabinet made in relation to this 
matter. 
 
The Committee expressed concern at the seriousness of this issue and it was 
suggested that the Committee’s membership hold a special informal session 
dedicated to discussing this issue of climate change, to be facilitated by the 
Director of Neighbourhoods. 
 
Resolved: 

1. The Cabinet’s decisions in respect of the Climate Emergency, resolved 
at its meeting held 28th January 2020 (minute 68 refers) be endorsed 

2. The Committee’s membership hold a special informal session 
dedicated to discussing this issue of climate change, to be facilitated by 
the Director of Neighbourhoods. 

 
39 NEIGHBOURHOODS DIRECTORATE PLAN 2019-20: QUARTER 3 

PERFORMANCE UPDATE 
The Committee scrutinised the progress at the end of Quarter 3 (1st October 
– 31st December 2019) towards achievement of the targets contained in the 
Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2019/2020.  

Page 5



 
In accordance with the Council’s performance management framework, 
progress toward targets contained within Directorate Plans are to be reported 
to relevant Overview & Scrutiny Committees at the end of each quarter.  
 
Two actions included in the Directorate Plan 2019-20 had been completed, 
71% (12) actions were ongoing and were due to be completed on schedule. 
Three further actions (18%) had passed their due dates and were not fully 
completed (Amber rating).  
 
The three actions that weren’t fully completed and for which the due dates had 
passed related to: agreeing a plan for embedding Public Service Reform 
across the borough; to sustain, as a minimum, the Council’s recycling rate (in 
year 2019/20) whilst reviewing the current waste management strategy to 
improve rates in conjunction with the governments resources and waste 
strategy; and the ‘Accelerated Housing Programme’. 
 
Resolved:  
The Quarter 3 (1st October – 31st December 2019) performance report 
detailing progress towards achievement of the targets contained in the 
Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2019/2020, be noted. 
 

40 ECONOMY DIRECTORATE PLANS 2019-20: QUARTER 3 
PERFORMANCE UPDATE 
The Committee scrutinised the progress at the end of Quarter 3 (1st October 
– 31st December 2019) towards achievement of the targets contained in the 
Economy Directorate Plan 2019/2020. 
 
In accordance with the Council’s performance management framework, 
progress toward targets contained within Directorate Plans are to be reported 
to the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committees at the end of each quarter. 
 
90% (10) of the actions included in the Economy Directorate Plan 2019-20 
were ongoing and due to be completed by each individual action’s due date. 
One further action isn’t fully complete and the action due date has now 
passed. The chart below showed that the overall performance of the 
Directorate in meeting its plan targets at the end of Quarter 3. The action that 
wasn’t fully complete and for which the due date had passed (Amber rating) 
related to: the ‘provision of an effective and efficient portfolio of Council asset’.  
 
The Operations Director (Rochdale Development Agency) updated the 
Committee on regeneration projects that were ongoing or in preparation 
across the Borough and of the work of Rochdale Development Agency. He 
updated the Committee on developments and proposals concerning Rochdale 
Market and on the Rochdale Riverside project. 
 
Resolved: 
The Quarter 3 (1st October – 31st December 2019) progress towards 
achievement of the targets contained in the Economy Directorate Plan 
2019/2020 be noted. 

Page 6



 
41 WORK PROGRAMME 2019/2020 

Resolved: 
That the Committee’s Work Programme 2019/2020 be noted. 
 

42 EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 
Resolved: 
That the Press and Public be excluded from the meeting during consideration 
of the following item of business, in accordance with the provisions of Section 
100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended. 

  
Reason for Decision: 
Should the press and public remain during the following item of business as 
there may be a disclosure of information that is deemed to be exempt under 
Part 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

43 ROCHDALE MARKET 
The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Economy which 
provided Members with an overview of the process that led to the current 
situation and the future plans for the Rochdale Market. 
 
Further to minute 24 of the Committee’s meeting held 28th November 2019, 
Members were asked to note that the Council’s Internal Audit had been asked 
to scrutinise the process for the market closure. 
 
Resolved: 
That the report be noted. 
 

Page 7



Minute 22, below, taken from the proceedings of the Cabinet meeting held Tuesday, 
28th July 2020. 
 
FINANCE UPDATE REPORT PERIOD 2 2020/21 
Consideration was given to a report of the Chief Finance Officer which sought 
approval of the Budget pressures requests including £18k for Wardle and 
Smallbridge Football Club as referred from the Pennines Township Committee, 
approval for the transfer of budget from the Equalisation Reserve to Townships, and 
detailing the forecast 2020/21 financial positions for Revenue, Capital, and the 
Collection Fund as at the end of May 2020. 
 
Members were advised that the forecast Revenue position, was providing a pressure 
of £17,639k. The pressure relating to Covid-19 was £29,059k, which was partially 
offset by the use of the government funding re Covid-19 of £13,616k. Non-Covid-19 
pressures were reported as £2,196k. Forecast Capital expenditure was £156,560k, 
after a re-phasing of £5,447k, budget returns of £2,065k, grant reductions of £2,640k 
and a grant increase of £192k. 
 
The Collection Fund position was indicating a deficit of £30,450k, which would be 
partially mitigated by increased government Section 31 grant of £20,950k, leaving a 
residual pressure of £9,500k. 
 
Alternatives considered 
The reporting of the financial position of the authority was required to ensure 
effective budget management which is critical to ensuring financial resources are 
spent in line with the budget and are targeted towards the Council’s priorities. 
 
Resolved 
1. That the forecast 2020/21 financial positions for Revenue, Capital, and the 
Collection Fund as at the end of May 2020 be noted. 
2. That the forecast Health & Social Care Pool Budget position as detailed within 
section 4.2 of the submitted report be noted. 
3. That approval be given to the Budget Pressure requests from Children’s 
Services, Neighbourhoods and Resources Directorates as detailed within section 4.3 
of the submitted report. 
4. That approval be given to the transfer of £113k from the Equalisation 
Reserve to Townships 
5. That the forecast unachieved savings target for Adult Care, Economy, public 
Health and Neighbourhoods Directorates be noted. 
6. That the Capital re-phasing of £5,447k detailed in section 4.6.2 of the submitted 
report be noted. 
7. That the net Capital budget changes of £4,513k detailed in section 4.6.1 be noted. 
8. That the use of the Insurance Reserve detailed in section 4.6.3 of the submitted 
report be noted. 
9. That the forecast 2020/21 Collection Fund position detailed in section 4.7 of the 
submitted report be noted. 
10. That £9k of Budget pressures funding be transferred to Pennines 
Township funds to support the Wardle and Smallbridge Football Club project. 
11. That the Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and 

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



Scrutiny Committee be requested to review the project planning and funding 
arrangements in relation to Wardle and Smallbridge Football Club and similar 
projects. 
 
Reason for resolution 
Effective budget management is critical to ensuring financial resources are spent in 
line with the budget and are targeted towards the Council’s priorities. 

Page 9



Agenda Item  

 

Report to Pennines Township Committee 

 

 

Date of Meeting 22 July 2020 
Portfolio Neighbourhoods, 

Community & Culture 
Report Author  Paul Harris/Faith 

Crompton 
Public/Private Document Public Document 

 
 

Wardle and Smallbridge Football Club 
 

 

1. Executive Summary 

 
1.1 Wardle and Smallbridge Football Club has plans to extend the lower pitch 

from a junior size to an adult/open age sized pitch and to improve the 
drainage, to Football Association standards. Once planning was approval 
the scheme started on site on 18 August 2019.  Initial works progressed well 
until bad weather made the site unworkable and the project team and 
football club agreed to close the site.  The decision was made to close the 
site by 28 October 2019. All parties agreed the site would close until the 
spring of 2020. 
 
The site became live once again on 20 April 2020 with the contractor 
working in line with the Government and Public Health England guidelines in 
respect of COVID 19.  Any ground that had previously been stripped in 2019 
had been stockpiled in readiness for future use.  As work recommenced and 
the remainder of the stripping of the site was completed, a number of 
unforeseen elements were becoming evident: 
 

 Additional drainage exposed from the top pitch from adjustment to the 
embankment would need to be connected to the new drainage formed on 
the new lower pitch. 

 The amount of soil stripped from the lower pitch did not achieve 200mm 
depth.  Only 75mm could be retained. 

 The amount of soil stripped from the grazing land area did not achieve 
the 400mm expected depth due to poor quality land.  Only a depth of 
95mm was retained from the full grazing area. 

 

 

 Options 
 
Option 1: Approve the additional funding for the remainder of the 1000 ton 
of topsoil to ensure the criteria set by Planning of a 300mm clearance 
between the separation barrier and the existing ground is met.  The amount 
required to meet this criteria is £18,000. 
 

 

Page 10



Option 2: Do not approve the additional funding for the 1000 ton of topsoil 
leaving a shortfall meaning the requirement of a 300mm clearance cannot 
be met and the risk of the project remaining incomplete. 
 
Option 3: Look for alternate avenues of funding.  The risk being that the site 
becomes dormant until funds are found to complete the project. 

 

2. Recommendation 

 
2.1 
 
 

It is recommended that option 1 be approved for funding by Pennines 
Township to ensure the requirements put forward by the Planning 
Environmental Health Senior Officer to achieve the 300mm separation 
between the new and old pitch surface is met. 

 

3. Reason for Recommendation 

 
3.1 To ensure the sufficient funding is made available for the additional 

requirement to meet Planning recommendations. 
  

3.2 Remove the risk of any pitch users and to mitigate any health and safety 
concerns. 

  

3.3 
 
 
3.4 
 
 
 

Option 1 has met the requirement of the Planning Environmental Health 
Senior Officer. 
 
Future maintenance regimes will benefit from the 300mm topsoil above the 
separation barrier understanding there should be no impact of disturbance of 
waste material. 

4. Key Points for Consideration 

 
4.1 Consideration given for the allowance of on-site validation of the separation 

layer and the testing of all imported topsoil for contaminants, to comply with 

a Planning condition in the interest of protecting human health.  A cost was 

associated with this element of work which put existing contingencies under 

pressure.  Therefore adding to pressures to the original budget of the works. 

  
4.2 Alternative options were considered such as reducing the 300mm separation 

layer, however, not meeting the Planning/human health requirements meant 
a number of options had to be disregarded and option 1 was the only viable 
approach to completing the works to meet specification. 

  

5. Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5.1 
 
 

Additional topsoil required 1000 ton 
Pennines Township Budget required    £18,000 

 
  

Page 11



 

6. Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6.1 Risk of budget shortfall as unforeseen events have meant the availability of 

the contingency has had to be expended. The additional £18,000 would 
mitigate the shortfall and cover the overall budget requirement. 

  
6.2 Health and safety of the pitch users. The additional funding would allow the 

300mm separation layer to be maintained which would mitigate any future 
risk  

  
6.3 Overall scheme would be at risk of non-delivery if the funding for the 

additional 1000 ton of topsoil is not approved. 
 

7. Consultation 

 
7.1 The Planning application was subject to consultation. 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

None N/A 

 

For Further Information Contact: Paul Harris – Tel: 01706 923269 
paul.harris@rochdale.gov.uk 
Faith Crompton – Tel: 01706 923253 
faith.crompton@rochdale.gov.uk 

 

Page 12



 

Report to Cabinet 
 

 

Date of Meeting 29th September 2020 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Regeneration, Business, 
Skills & Employment 

Report Author Susan Ayres 
Public/Private Document Public 

 

 

Inclusive Skills, Work and Health Plan 2021-2023 
 

 

Executive Summary 

 
1. The Inclusive Skills, Work and Health Plan sets out the need to support the 

borough’s adult population, and business community to be able to take 
advantage of the economic growth opportunities identified in the recently 
adopted Borough Growth Plan 
 
The Plan recognises the co-dependency between health and employment, 
and the role skills plays in securing better employment and earning better 
wages. 
 
The Plan aims to maximise the benefits for Rochdale of the significant 
budgets devolved to Greater Manchester, recognises that this brings 
opportunities as well as challenges. 
 
The Plan outlines 8 priorities and what success would look like for each. 
1.  Adults with learning difficulties and mental health issues 
2.  Long term unemployed 
3   Digital Inclusion 
4.  Adult Education (18yr +) 
5. Higher Education (higher level apprenticeships and degrees) 
6. People in low skilled low paid employment 
7. Employers 
8  Making every contact count (RBC/NHS) 
 
The impact of Covid 19 is taken into account, both in the limited amount of 
data so far, but also the forecasts about the inequalities that are predicted to 
widen as a result including the impact on young people.  
 
To support the implementation of the Plan, which will have a detailed 
delivery plan with targets and lead officers, it is requested that a range of 
levers within the control of the council are used to help meet the objectives 
of the plan. 
 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 7



Recommendation 

 
2. That Cabinet: 

a)  Approve the Inclusive Skills, Work and Health Plan 2021-2023 
b) Support the levers at the council’s disposal to contribute to the 

objectives in the Plan 
 

 
 

Reason for Recommendation 

 
3. The borough’s skills, employment and health levels are below the Greater 

Manchester average on most of the key indicators.  Significant economic 
growth opportunities have been identified in the borough’s Growth Plan and 
it is important that these directly benefit borough residents. 
 
There is substantial evidence to link being out of work with poorer physical 
and mental health conditions, risks of homelessness and higher mortality 
rates. 
 
If everyone had a decent job, health outcomes would improve significantly 
and inequalities reduce. 

 

Key Points for Consideration 

 
4. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The presentation to the Cabinet provides the details of the Plan. 
 
Examples of the levers in the council’s control include: 

- Maximising social value from council commissioning such as local 
employment opportunities, apprenticeships, work experience. 

- Commissioned organisations by the council and the CCG that deliver 
services and employ people are encouraged to work towards the 
principles in the GM’s Employer Charter and part of the tendering 
process.   

- The use of planning conditions (where possible) to require local 
recruitment and training plans to be development in conjunction with 
the Economic Affairs Team. 

- The awarding of any discretionary council funding to businesses to be 
dependent on the employment and skills contribution to the borough 
and to encourage good quality jobs and employment practices. 

 
 
Alternatives Considered 
 
The alternative of not having a cohesive and comprehensive Plan would 
lead to an un-co-ordinated, inefficient and ineffective range of skills, 
employment and health activities by the private, public and voluntary sector, 
that do not meet the needs of borough residents or businesses. 
The lack of a Plan hinders the ability of the Council to bid for external 
funding to support our objectives. 
 

Page 14



  

 

Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5.  The Plan can be delivered with existing Council resources allocated within 

the Economic Affairs Team,  and the ad hoc external funding that the team 
has a good track record in attracting, such as from the MHCLG, GMCA and 
ESFA. 

 

Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6.    The risk is that without such a Plan, inequalities within the borough and 

between the borough and most of the rest of Greater Manchester will 
increase. Plus, borough residents will not be well placed or equipped to 
benefit from the economic growth planned for the borough.  More people 
out of work will have an impact on the demand of other services and 
people will have less to spend in the local economy.  Businesses will not 
have the skilled workforces required and will recruit people outside the 
borough, or relocate to different areas.   
 

Consultation 

 
7.      Throughout the development of the Plan, there has been consultation with 

residents, SME’s, training providers and internal colleagues in Public 
Health, RDA, Adult Services and various teams within the Neighourhoods 
Directorate. An Equality Impact Assessment is being undertaken. 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

8. None  

 

For Further Information Contact: Susan Ayres, Tel: 01706 925636, 
susan.ayres@rochdale.gov.uk 

 

Page 15



Rochdale’s 
Inclusive Skills Health and Work Plan

Steph Rush: Work, Health and Skills Manager

We will provide support and access to training and employment opportunities for 
every adult in the borough that wants to work and learn and we will support our 

workforces to grow and flourish.   

P
age 16



Background and Context

• This Plan is to support our adult population in the borough adopting a 
whole population approach 

• Our priorities have been identified by our latest economic position of our 
residents and to make sure they are able to take advantage of the 
business growth opportunities 

• Supporting employers and their workforces is also key so we have good 
quality jobs available including opportunities for those furthest away 
from the labour market

• It requires a collaborative approach from internal and external partners 
with a SMART Implementation Plan that needs to respond and adapt    

P
age 17



Economic Dashboard
Indicator Latest data GM 

average

Difference to GM 

average - widening 

(red),

improvement (green) 

or no change (black)

Frequency and source Latest data +/- from previous 

period

RAG rating Comment (including 

position in GM where 

known)

Employment rate 71.2% 72.7% -1.5% Quarterly  (Annual 

Population Survey)

July  2020 +1.0% 7th, higher than 

Bolton, Oldham and  

Manchester 

Unemployment rate 

(model based)

5.1% 5.1% 0 Quarterly  (Annual 

Population Survey) 

March 2020

July 2020 -0.6% 7th, lower than Bolton, 

Manchester and 

Oldham

Claimant count (JSA 

and UC (out of work))

8.8%

11,985 residents

8.0% +0.8% Monthly (DWP) Aug  2020 0 8th lower than 

Manchester and  

Oldham

% 18-24 claiming out 

of work benefits

13.6%

2455 residents

12.1% +1.5% Monthly (DWP) Aug  2020 -0.1% 8th lower than 

Tameside and Oldham

% over 50 claiming 

out of work benefits

5.7%

2325

residents

5.6% +0.1% Monthly (DWP) Aug 2020 0 6th, lower than Bolton, 

Manchester, Oldham 

and Salford

% of working age 

population with L2 

qualification ( 5 x A*-C  

GSCE)

66.7% 73.4% -6.7% Annual (APS) April 2020 -0.7% Equal 9th with Oldham

% of working age with 

L4 qualification (HND 

or Foundation Degree 

level)

27.7% 35.6% -7.9% Annual (APS) April 2020 +2.2% 8th, higher than Wigan 

and Oldham

% of working age 

populations with no 

qualifications

11.7% 9.2% +2.5% Annual (APS) April 2020 -0.2% 8th, lower than Bolton 

and Oldham

Gross median annual 

pay– residents 

(prosperity indicator)

£21,900 £23,487 -£1587 Annual (Employer 

Survey of hours and 

earnings) 

Sept 19 +£1036 9th, higher than 

Oldham

Gross median annual 

pay – workplace 

(quality of jobs 

indicator)

£21,631 £23,866 -£2235 Annual (Employer 

Survey of hours and 

earning) 

Sept 19 +£1,254 6th, higher than 

Wigan, Tameside, 

Oldham and Bolton.

Number of 

enterprises

6625 Annual (ONS) Oct 19 -1630 Net change 

P
age 18



The Co-dependency of Health and Employment   

• The Independent Prosperity Review highlights strong links between 
poor health and low productivity especially in GM

• Across GM there are 236,000 people out of work with 108,753 due 
to health reasons, in Rochdale this fig is 9,811 (May 2020) 

• If everyone had a decent job health outcomes would improve 
significantly  

• There are a substantial number of people in work that are at risk of 
losing their jobs due to health conditions

Being out of work leads to…

 Poorer physical and mental health, long-term limiting illness

 Higher mortality rates

 Higher rates of consultation, medication and hospital admission

 Increased tobacco and alcohol consumption, decreased physical activity

 Deepening inequality and poverty

P
age 19



Care & Support: 

Specialist 

Employment Service

Working Well: 

Work & Health 

Programme

Self-Employment 

Programme: 

EnterprisingYou

From April 2020 Programme in place Programme in place

 Supported 

employment for 

people with a learning 

disability and/or 

autism

 Individual Placement 

and Support (IPS) for 

people with a severe 

mental illness

A whole population approach to Health, Skills and Employment

Local Leads: Steph 

Rush, Clare Gardner

Local Lead: 

Lloyd Orr
Local Leads: 

Steph Rush

 Early intervention system 

for those at risk of falling 

out of work (including 

self-employed), or who 

are newly-unemployed 

due to health issues / 

disability

 Co-commissioned by 

GMCA & GM Health & 

Social Care Partnership 

 Will support up to 11,000 

individuals between Mar 

2019 & Mar 2022 

Programme in place

Local Leads: Dianne 

Gardner, Steph Rush

Working Well: 

Early Help
In Work & Welfare

 Managing the GM 

response to welfare 

reform and Universal 

Credit (UC)

 Improving in-work 

progression 

 Supporting employment 

for the over-50s

 Healthy Workforce 

Agenda – high quality 

employment / utilizing 

the workplace as a 

setting to tackle health 

inequalities

Ongoing

Local Lead: Amanda 

Huntbach, Fiona Brigg 

www.inworkgm.co.uk  / @WorkingWellWHP

www.workingwellearlyhelp.co.uk / 

@WorkingWellEH

www.enterprising-you.co.uk / @EnterprisingYou

 Pilot programme to 

support 2,500 of GM’s 

more vulnerable self-

employed residents and 

those working in the gig 

economy

 Will actively engage 

with priority groups 

including people with 

health conditions or 

disabilities, women, 

older people, part-time 

workers, carers and UC 

claimants

 Individualised support 

programme for long-term 

unemployed with health 

conditions or disability to 

find and sustain work

 Operating since Jan 2018, 

it will support 22,500 

individuals across GM 

until 2024

 Since the original pilot in 

2014, the various Working 

Well programmes have (to 

July 2019) generated over 

30,000 referrals, supported 

more than 23,000 GM 

residents and assisted 

5,000 of those residents to 

secure employment

P
age 20



Devolution
• Opportunities

• GM are able to commission programmes that 
have previously been done by central 
government 

• There is a broad range of provision 

• Government have confidence in the GMCA to 
devolve more

• The links with the GMHSP and the GMCA has 
supported work to be a shared responsibility 
and has facilitated joint funding opportunities

• The Adult Education Budget has been 
streamlined and the Local authorities have more 
opportunities to influence provision delivered in 
the borough

• GMCA are in a position to lobby Government 
more in terms of influencing policies including 
areas that affect the work and skills agenda

Challenge

• One programme does not necessarily meet the 
needs of Rochdale

• Local providers are excluded from the 
commissioning process

• Some contracts drive behaviours of working 
with those closest to the labour 

• Organisations commissioned have often not 
worked in the borough before 

• General skills shortage of staff to deliver the 
contracts across GM

• The more programmes that are commissioned 
creates more demand on work and skills teams 
in the localities that are already stretched and 
under resourced

• Local authorities often achieve and support the 
outcomes expected of the providers with no 
remuneration

• Programmes are not always joined up and have 
outcomes that don’t support the longer term 
goals of individuals or career progression

P
age 21



P
age 22



Our Priority: Adults with learning disabilities and mental health issues. 
We will develop more specialist employment support and opportunities for people in 

the care and support group and increase the number of people with learning 
disabilities, autism and enduring mental health conditions into paid and meaningful 

employment

What success will look like
• Increase the percentage of people with a 

learning disability into paid employment

• Every adult with a learning disability that 
can work independently with the right 
support will be able to access appropriate 
provision

• More people from this cohort will be 
employed by Rochdale Council 

• We will influence and change recruitment 
policies internally and externally to 
support people to have the same 
opportunities as others to job vacancies 

• Individual Placement Support models 
based in the mental health Early 
Intervention Team will support people in 
to employment and will be rolled out 
across more teams in secondary mental 
health services

• There will be appropriate pathways and 
provision for people with Autism

• We will provide and support more 
supported internships for younger people

P
age 23



Our Priority: Long Term Unemployed 
We will make sure we support the most vulnerable and people with the most complex 
lives into, or on the journey to employment, by working with key services outside the 
work and skills system, linking in support at the right time that will be ongoing once 

they access provision or employment.

What success will look like

• Create hope and aspirations by giving 
people a clear line of sight of the 
opportunities available

• We will equip people with a solid 
foundation of skills, enabling people to be 
ready for life and work

• Those less motivated will see the benefits 
of getting a job and see it as a realistic 
option and will be supported along the 
way

• We will adopt a multidisciplinary approach 
to respond to people’s needs and provide 
the right support along the way

• We will engage people out of work that 
are not in receipt of services or benefits 

• There will be commissioned programmes 
that are able to provide the right support 
for the long term unemployed and are not 
just funded on job outcomes 

P
age 24



Our Priority: Digital Inclusion
We will grasp the opportunity to increase digital skills for the benefit of the local 
economy and our communities. Ensuring that all residents have the basic level of 

digital skills needed for day-to-day life, are able to take advantage of public services 
delivered through digital channels and are equipped to function productively in the 

modern workplace.  

What success will look like

• We will equip people with basic digital 
skills in their daily lives ensuring no-one is 
digitally left behind, which will reduce 
social isolation and demand on public 
services.

• People across the borough will be 
supported to be able to access the 
internet and go online, especially from 
those groups that are currently digitally 
excluded. 

• Increase motivation of those excluded so 
they see the benefits of why using the 
internet could be relevant and helpful.

• The Adult education Budget will support 
basic digital literacy to prepare people for 
the world of work and digital skills will be 
embedded in all adult learning courses

• People in- work and those looking for 
employment will have the minimum 
digital requirements linked to processing 
information that will be applicable across 
all sectors.

P
age 25



Our Priority: Adult Education   
We will help shape the skills system through the Adult Education Budget at a locality 
level to meet the boroughs strategic objectives including the needs of our residents 

and the local economy.  More people will obtain relevant and meaningful 
qualifications at all levels and build on their existing skills and interests, so they can 

move into work and progress, while we narrow the gap with the rest of GM. 

What success will look like

• We will decrease the number of people 
with no qualifications 

• We will increase the number of people 
gaining Level 2 and 3 qualifications 
especially from under- represented groups

• There will be clear pathways and 
progression opportunities for people to 
build on their skills and qualifications

• There will be high quality training 
delivered across the borough that is 
aligned and planned with the Local 
Authority

• Providers will work collaboratively to 
avoid duplication

• We will have an eco-system of support in 
place for providers to use that will support 
learners with other barriers that they face

• Providers will create an environment 
where students want to learn and make 
subjects interesting so they tap in to 
people’s interests      

• We will continue to have a strong focus on 
Community and Family Learning and this 
will be recognised as useful vehicle for 
people to progress from.

P
age 26



Our Priority: Higher Education (Degrees and Higher Level Apprenticeships)
We will increase and provide more opportunities locally for people to gain higher level 
qualifications including apprenticeships that are linked to support the planned growth 
of the borough and hard to fill roles, and support the ambitions of Rochdale becoming 

a university town.  

What success will look like

• More adults will achieve a Level 4 and 
above qualifications 

• More people from under – represented 
groups including the BAME community 
will access HE provision

• Courses will be flexible to support people 
in work achieve higher level qualifications 
and progress in either their existing or 
chosen careers

• Provision will be high quality and will 
support the local skills shortage and the 
growing economy

• We will make sure we align 
complementary provision and HE offers 
and develop a strong brand 

• Employers will play a key role in the 
design and development of the curriculum 
and learners will have access to state of 
the art equipment and technology 

• We will have a university campus based in 
the borough that is accessible for our 
residents       

• We will have more young people and 
adults in work accessing higher level 
apprenticeships

P
age 27



Our Priority: People in low skilled low paid employment
We will support people in work that are in low skilled low paid employment to 

progress, especially those on Universal Credit and other benefits.  This support will 
extend to people entering the labour market so they can be supported to achieve 

their full potential and meet their long term goals and aspirations. 

What success will look like

• The number of people claiming in work 
benefits will be reduced

• People will increase their earnings

• We will increase the number of people in 
work accessing training and achieving 
relevant qualifications

• People in work will have access to training 
and be aware of what’s available 

• Employers will promote and upskill their 
workforce relevant to their business needs 

• People will have access to careers advice 
and be supported to access relevant 
training and support

• Providers will be more flexible in their 
delivery to meet the needs of people in 
work and adopt more blended models of 
learning

• More people will take advantage of 
learner loans to fund Level 3 courses

• We will work closely with JCP to support 
people in work on UC 

P
age 28



Our Priority: Employers
We will strengthen employer engagement between internal and external partners making sure 

the wide offer of support is promoted and joined up to help support businesses and their 
workforce. Employers will become more productive, have skilled workforces, create healthier 
places to work for our residents and adopt good employment practice that will enable more 

businesses to pay the real living wage. 

What success will look like
• We will engage and work with more 

employers over the next two years

• All partners and organisations that work 
with businesses will promote the 
Rochdale offer of support at every point 
of contact 

• We will have more employers sign up to 
the Greater Manchester’s Good 
Employment Charter 

• Businesses will start to increase their 
productivity 

• More employers will start to pay the real 
living wage 

• The boroughs median earnings will rise

• More Small Medium Enterprises will 
upskill their workforces 

• More employers will support workplace 
health and develop policies and a culture 
to support a healthier workplace and 
workforce.   

• Sickness absence will be reduced by 
employers that engage with the additional 
support available 

• Through the growth opportunities more 
jobs will be created that our local 
residents will be equipped to access

P
age 29



Our Priority: Every Contact Counts: 
Work and skills will be embedded in every council policy and is included in outcome frameworks 

of commissioned contracts.  We will raise the profile of work and skills across all services and 
demonstrate how; getting, keeping and progressing people in work can support a variety of 

agendas, reduce inappropriate access to services, improve health and well-being and increase 
revenue to the council. 

What success will look like

• All Rochdale BC and NHS integrated 
commissioned services that employ 
people will have to meet or be working 
towards the Good Employment Charter

• Work and skills priorities are part of social 
value frameworks and effectively 
managed by contract managers 

• Work will be promoted as a health priority 
amongst health colleagues and partners

• More people across services will access 
how to have the The Healthy Work 
Conversation and understand the benefits 
that (good) work can have on a person’s 
health and well-being  

• Work and skills outcomes are included in 
KPI’s and outcome frameworks 

• Learning, Skills and Employment will be 
included in Integrated Prevention Models 
/ Neighbourhood Teams and Social 
Prescribing.

• People in receipt of locally managed 
schemes and those affected by internal 
welfare reforms will be sign posted to the 
Single Point of Access for additional 
support

• Services and policies will see how work 
and skills can support their agendas.  

P
age 30



Impact of Covid 19 on Rochdale’s Inclusive Skills Work and 
Health Plan and Next Steps

• Our priorities will remain the same but will be more difficult to achieve 

• There will be a growing number of people who become unemployed

• There will be fewer job opportunities

• Those furthest from the labour market will find it more difficult than ever 
to gain meaningful employment 

• Employers that do survive the crisis will be less likely to support under-
represented groups

• High skill levels will be more important than ever to provide the best 
opportunities to support the economy to recover

• There will be opportunities that will come out of the crisis and it is 
important that these are recognised and seized upon

• Implementation / Action Plan has measurable outcomes, includes key 
partners and is able to respond and adapt to the current crisis in the short 
and longer term 

P
age 31



Some of our successes over the last twelve months
• Developed a Single Point of Access for services to refer people interested in 

exploring training and employment opportunities. We have engaged with 414, 
making over 200 referrals to employment provision, keeping 15 individuals in 
work, and supporting 10 people directly into jobs

• Developed a Single Point of Access for businesses to receive support and have 
produced a comprehensive digital offer. Since August 19 we have engaged with 180 
Businesses

• Set up ‘Get Rochdale Working’ Facebook Page that has already over 4,000
members

• Delivered Riverside Recruitment Sessions – engaged over 360 people and referred 
all for further employability support

• Secured funding through RBH to deliver the New Pioneers Project

• Delivered the ‘healthy work’ conversation to a variety of health services 

• Supported our local supported employment provider to gain the new GM contract 
and provided links with the Early Intervention Team to help embed this service 

• Linked the Healthy workforce agenda with our offer to businesses

• Secured over £350K in funding for external partners

• Supported GM Working Well commissioned programmes to get over 200 people 
into employment

P
age 32



REAL STORIES….

FROM THE GP: 

• A woman in her 50’s, mental health problems 
following the bereavement of her father who she 
had been caring for. 

• Struggling financially, felt she had no purpose and 
didn’t know where to start looking for support. 
Struggled to go places, cried throughout 
appointments and avoided social situations. 

• Enabled this woman to access the right benefits that 
she was entitled to and to access support to 
improve her mental health.

• She felt like she found her purpose by volunteering 
each week and expressed an interest in starting her 
own business (community interest company) writing 
a business plan.

• Set up her own group which is carers caring for 
carers – her aim is to develop the support she 
wished she had when she was going through a 
difficult time. 

FROM RBH: 
• Young man age 24, never worked, 

suicidal thoughts, just left prison 
and is on licence. 

• Found him an opportunity with a 
local employer, he went for the 
interview and is starting work self 
employed 10.02.20. 

• Working in partnership with 
probation, RBH and JCP we 
arranged his self employment, 
clothes for him for work and a 
travel pass. 

• We are also accessing support 
once he starts work from our GM 
Early Help programme to enable 
him to access mental health 
support. 

P
age 33



Any questions?

THANK YOUP
age 34



COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT  
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
Work Programme 2019/2020 
 
Introduction 
 
The Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee was established by the Council at the meeting held on 19th May 2015, 
the principal role of the Committee being to bring together both the physical and 
skills aspects of economic regeneration, and the supporting work of services such as 
leisure, highways, housing and environmental services etc. that provide the 
opportunities for work and the improvement of life experiences for the Borough’s 
communities. 
 
Areas of focus for the Committee include the scrutiny of partners or key contractors 
relevant to the remit of the Committee. 

 
The work programme for the Committee is drawn up through consideration of the 
statutory roles of the Committee, including the ‘call-in’ or review of executive 
decisions made, budget and policy consultation, and review of service delivery, with 
scheduling reflecting the anticipated consideration of business to deliver these 
functions.  The Committee has options for developing its own agenda and can 
request further business to come forward. 
 
In brief, these are to hold the executive to account and to maintain an oversight of 
the delivery of Council services.  This is undertaken principally through the following 
means:- 

  

 Scrutiny of Executive Decisions through the ‘Call-in’ process; 

 The consideration of Budget and Policy Framework proposals for 
consultative purposes; 

 The consideration of a range of performance monitoring/management 
data; 

 The specific consideration of individual service issues as may be specified 
by the Committee.  

 
The Committee’s Work Programme is prepared on the basis of known items at this 
time.  Scheduling of some business remains to be determined and this is reflected in 
the Work programme.  The following table highlights issues where there is either an 
agreement or an anticipation that specific items may come forward.  Other issues 
can be brought forward as indicated above.     
 

Page 35

Agenda Item 8



24th September 2020 

 
October 2020 (special meeting) 

 
 
26th November 2020 
 

Work Programme  Update 

Call-in/Member items/other referrals  

Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership 
Update 

Performance management and 
monitoring 

Update on Domestic Violence Scrutiny of proposals 

Directorate Plan Updates – 1st and 2nd 
Quarter Reports 20120/2021 

 Neighbourhoods Directorate 

 Economy Directorate 

Scrutiny of performance 

Climatic Issue (Director of Neighbourhoods 
to report) 

Performance management and 
monitoring 

  

 
21st November 2019 
 

Work Programme  Update  

Call-in/Member items/other referrals    

Climatic Issue (Director of Neighbourhoods 
to report) 

Presentation/update 

Housing Allocations update Scrutiny of proposals 

Community Safety – update 
Performance management and 
monitoring 

Directorate Plan Updates – 3rd Quarter 
Reports 2020/2021 

 Neighbourhoods Directorate 

 Economy Directorate  

Performance management and 
monitoring 

 
 

Work Programme 
To consider the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2020/2021 

Call-in/Member items/other referrals  

RBH – Fire Concerns Member request 

Wardle and Smallbridge Football Club 
Reference from Cabinet and 
Pennines Township Committee 

Inclusive Skills, Work and Health Plan 2021-
2023 

Performance management and 
monitoring 

2040 Transport Delivery Plan/District Local 
Implementation Plan 

Scrutiny of proposals 

Rochdale Market Report of the Internal Audit team 

Page 36


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	6 Wardle and Smallbridge Football Club
	Wardle and Smallbridge Football Club report

	7 Inclusive Skills, Work and Health Plan 2021-2023
	Append. 1 for Inclusive Skills, Work and Health Plan 2021-2023

	8 Work Programme 2020/2021

